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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Rex Mill is located in the center of the small, unincorporated 
town of Rex, Georgia, on the east bank of Cotton Indian Creek, A 
1 1/2 story frame structure, it is situated on a downgrade slope 
and raised on the vest side by stone piers. Additional support has 
been provided by new cement pillars.

The middle section of the structure is the oldest, the one- 
story shed additions on the north and south having been attached 
after the sale of the mill in 1887* The south addition houses tvo 
rooms and a porch while the north shed extends the size of the main 
room to provide additional storage space. Most of this northern 
addition has been replaced in recent years due to deterioration. 
The east end of the dam extends into the northwest corner of the 
mill, resulting in considerable moisture transference.

The original building has a pitch roof with a boxed cornice 
on the gable ends. The roofing and weatherboarding, with the 
exception of recent repairs, is said to be the same material on 
the mill at the time of the 1887 sale.

The first floor of the mill is a single large room, extended 
to the north by the shed and divided only by the placement of 
the milling equipment and machinery. The construction of the 
building is clearly visible on the interior. The main support beams 
and uprights are pegged and some of the original flooring is in place, 
although deteriorating and being replaced. The straight staircase 
is located in the northeast corner of the center section of the mill 
and is simple in construction, utilizing treads without risers and 
having a steep incline. The second floor also consists of a single 
room which is lighted by two gable windows on the east and west ends. 
All the windows on the west side of the building are covered with 
wooden shutters, although none are located on other sides.

There are two entrances to the mill. A single door opens 
onto the small, shed-roofed porch which is a part of the south addition 
and was formerly reached by a single wooden step which has since been 
removed. The large double doors on the east side through which the 
corn was unloaded slide open on runners. They have been temporarily 
replaced by the present owners. In addition, there are two small 
doors on the west side which overlook the water wheel and sluice, one 
located in the main part of the building and one in the north shed.

The original turbine water wheel was replaced after the 1887 
sale with the present vertical one, an overshot metal wheel which 
works on the principle of the water striking the blades from above. 
The sluice is wood with metal supports. The present stone dam was 
built in 1919> utilizing a zig-zag pattern for strength after several 
collapses had taken place. The original dam was wooden.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

An architectural reflection of early industry in Georgia, 
Bex Mill has been significant in the community for over a century 
as both a visual and commercial landmark. One of only two grist 
mills remaining in Clay ton County, it remained in operation until 
recent years.

While little is known of the property on vhich the mill is 
located until after the Civil War, it is probable that the mill 
was built by a member of the Hollingsvorth family, prominent early 
settlers of the county and long-time owners of the mill property. 
No definite date for construction has been assigned to the mill, 
although speculation runs from the 1820's to the l860*s» but the 
likely builder appears to be I. L. ("Touch") Hollingsworth. Hol­ 
lingsworth was the owner of the mill in i860 when the manufacturing 
census collected information concerning the mill and its production.

According to the Census, one eighth of the business of the 
mill was "custom work." This involved the grinding of grain raised 
by a farmer while he waited for his meal, A portion of the grain by 
weight was then deducted as toll, the payment received by the miller. 
As this was by far the most common practice in rural areas, one 
eighth seems a very small percentage. The Hollingsworth mill was 
idle for four months of the year and operated on three quarters 
capacity for the remaining eight months, with an estimated maximum 
capacity of sixty bushels of grain per day. The U,000 bushels of 
grain processed by the mill in 1879 resulted in 192,000 pounds of 
corn meal and 32,000 pounds of feed.

In 1887, Hollingsworth sold the mill property to J. H. and 
W. C. Estes. The Estes brothers made the additions to the mill 
structure noted in the description and replaced the mill wheel and 
dam. J. B. Mi lam was hired as miller soon after the purchase and 
held that position until 1939• receiving one third of the mill's 
profit as payment.

Through those years the mill saw a decline in custom grinding 
with a corresponding increase in merchant work, or the purchase of 
large amounts of grain by the mill owner which was then ground and 
sold to local merchants. This practice was almost entirely in use 
when state Senator Walter Estes inherited the mill from his father.

(continued)
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Local legend tells that the structure has always been painted 
red with the exception of one brief occasion when it was painted silver. 
At that time public outcry caused the owner to go back to the traditional 
red paint.
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By 1948, when Estes sold the mill to O.K. Longino, it had entirely supplanted 
the previous custom grinding procedures.

Although the mill was sold several more times, the property reverted 
eventually to Senator Estes from whom the present owners purchased it. Plans 
are being made to restore the mill to working order and resume grinding.

Rex Mill remains today a viable and visible part of the local 
community reflecting the architectural and industrial history of the county. 
Architecturally it is typical of many grist mills built in a utilitarian/ 
functional style without frills and without particular style/ motif prevalent 
during the era of its construction. In industrial history it stands as a 
landmark to the local, independent business man who ran this grist mill as 
part of the economic interdependence of an agrarian world characterizing the 
South during these years. If and when it becomes a museum, it will reflect 
these aspects of earlier days in the history of the rural south.
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AMENDMENT ^ //, A
"

REX MILL 
REX, CLAYTON COUNTY, GEORGIA -7- D f\

Description

The interior arrangement and outfitting of the Rex Mill is typical of late 
nineteenth century Georgia grist mills. The ground level (basement) is given over 
to iron shafting and gearing mechanisms which transfer power from the horizontal 
waterwheel shaft to the various horizontal and vertical driveshafts. The main floor 
houses the primary and secondary milling operations; grinding,, bolting, and bagging 
equipment is found here. A walk-in ice box, converted to mechanical refrigeration 
in the early twentieth century, runs along part of one wall. The attic is devoted 
to preliminary milling operations and still houses a John Deere "snap corn" which 
shucks, shells, and separates corn. The two floors are connected by elevators, 
blowers, and chutes. Power is distributed throughout the mill by a system of iron 
shafts (both horizontal and vertical), pulleys, and belts.

Most of the milling equipment is still in place and visible in the photographs. 
The mill also contains numerous spare parts and other pieces of machinery. The mill 
is more or less in operating condition, although there is a bad bearing in the water- 
wheel and some equipment, notably the grinding mechanisms, has been partly disas­ 
sembled. The owner is contemplating a thorough restoration and believes that most 
of the necessary parts are to be found somewhere in the mill.
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